
 
 
 

 

TO: James L. App, City Manager 
 
FROM: Meg Williamson, Assistant to the City Manager 
 
SUBJECT: 21st Street Tank Site Property Development Plan 
 
DATE: March 1, 2005 
_________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
NEEDS:  For the City Council to consider a “master plan” for the development of the 21st Street Water 

Tank site and adjacent surplus property. 
 
 
FACTS: 1. The 21st Street Reservoir was built in 1925.   
 
 2. In 2003, the City retained Boyle Engineering to prepare an evaluation of tank repair and 

expansion options.  
  

3. In March 2004, the City Council determined that the 21st Street Reservoir had reached the 
end of its useful life.   

 
4. In May 2004, Boyle Engineering was engaged to design a replacement reservoir.   

 
5. Boyle’s preliminary design indicates: 

 
• It is possible to construct two partially buried, pre-stressed concrete tanks of 3-

million gallons each to replace the existing 4-million gallon reservoir (see attached 
project narrative). 

 
• The tanks can be constructed within the footprint of the existing reservoir, but to 

do so, it will be necessary to demolish the existing reservoir (temporarily 
diminishing the City’s existing water storage by 4-million gallons). 

 
• To assure adequate storage supply during construction of the replacement 

reservoirs, it will be necessary to first develop new tank storage capacity at the 
Ladera site (southwest end of the City).  

 
• It will be necessary to construct a new access road (connecting from the 19th Street 

side of the 21st Street Reservoir site) to accommodate construction and 
maintenance activities.  

 
• The total site is 18 acres; only 2 acres would be developed for reservoir purposes.  

Approximately 4 to 5 acres located south and east of the hilltop area has been 
identified as surplus property.  Approximately 11 acres would remain as a hillside 
buffer to the reservoir.   

 
6. Based on the preliminary design work done to date, a master plan for the replacement of the 

21st Street Reservoir and dispensation of surplus property may be appropriate.  
 
 
ANALYSIS 
AND 
CONCLUSION:  The preliminary design report for the replacement of the tank concludes that the existing 

tank will have to be demolished, and then subsequently two 3-million gallon tanks would be 
constructed.  The City cannot accommodate a reduction in water storage. Therefore, new 



tanks at Ladera must be constructed before 21st Street is demolished. Once the Ladera tanks 
are in operation, the tank at 21st Street will be removed and work can begin on its 
replacement. 

 
  The construction of a new construction/maintenance access road will provide an 

opportunity to better access (surplus) land at the base of the reservoir site for other uses.  
This lower area is surrounded by single family lots that front on Olive Street and 19th Street.  
A preliminary analysis for utilizing this “surplus” land indicates the potential for six new 
residential lots of compatible size and character.   

 
  The current master plan approach for this city owned reservoir site is to: 
 

• Continue with the design of the 21st Street Reservoir expansion and new Access Road 
from 19th Street per the current contract with Boyle Engineering 

• Conduct Environmental Review of the tank expansion and road access in readiness for 
tank construction  

• Proceed with surplus area residential tentative map subdivision design  
• Declaration of surplus property, General Plan / Rezone Application and Tentative Map 

to be processed after tank design is complete 
• Construction of the 21st Street replacement tank(s) once Ladera tanks are complete 
• Recordation of subdivision map and sale of surplus property once 21st Street tanks are 

complete.   
 

       Completion of these tasks will unfold over the next 2-5 years with individual “milestones” 
returning to Council for consideration and/or action.   

 
POLICY 
REFERENCE: Adopted Capital Improvement Program 
 
 
FISCAL 
IMPACT: Costs to design the replacement for the existing tank is funded from the budget adopted for this 

project.  Costs associated with the tentative map design for the surplus property are not currently 
budgeted and estimated at $70,000 (to be recovered from the future sale of surplus property).    

 
OPTIONS: a. Endorse the 21st Street Reservoir Master Plan to: 
 
 (1) Construct the replacement of the existing [21st Street] tank at such time as the Ladera 

Tanks are complete, and 
 
 (2) Proceed with surplus property subdivision map design to create individual lots (for sale) 

once the replacement tanks have been constructed. 
 
  b. Amend, modify, or reject the above option. 
 
 
Attachments (2) 
 

1) Project Narrative of 21st Street Reservoir Expansion and Access Road  
2) Preliminary subdivision concept layout  

 
 










